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FILED 
IN CLERK'S OFFICE 

US. DISTRICT COURT E:.O.N.Y. 

UNlTED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK * JUN 20 2013 * 

LONG ISLAND OFFICE 

U.S, COMMODITY FUTURES TRADING 
COMMISSIOJI!, 

MADlSON DEAN, JNC., GEORGEATHANASATOS 
(wk/a GEORGE ATIIAN), AND LAURENCE DODGE, 

Defendants. 

CASE NO. 2:12-cv-02235-
JFB-ARL 

CONSENT ORDER OF PERMANENT INJUNCI'ION, CIVIL 
MONETARY PENALTY, AND OTIII:REQUITABLE RELIEF AGAINST 

' LAURENCE DODGE 

I. BACKGROUND 

On May 8, 2012, Plaintiff U.S Commodity l'uture.s Trading Commission filed a 

Complaint for Permanent Injunction, Clv!l Monetary Penalties, and O!her Equitable Relief 

("Complaint'? ogalnst Dofendants George Atlumasatos f'Athansatos''), Laurene<: Dodge 

C'Dodge'?, and Madison Dean, Inc. C'Madison Dean") for violations of Sections 4b(a)(2)(A) and 

(C) of tile Commodity Exchange Act ("CEA" or the "Act''), as amended by the rood, 

Conservation, and Energy Act of2008, Pub. 1, No. 110-246, Title X[[J (tho CFTC 

Reauthorization Act of2008 f'CRA ")), §§ 13 1 OJ -13204, 122 Stat. 165 I (~mooted June 18, 2008), 

and the Dodd-Jlrank Wall S!iwt Refunn and Consumer Protection Act of20 10 ("Dodd-Frank 

Act'1, Pub. L. No. 111-203, Tille VH (the Wail Street Tranipar~mcyatld Accountability Act of 

201 0), §§701-n4, 124 Stat. 1376 (enaelcd July 21, 20 I OJ, to bo codlf>~d ot 7 U.S.C. §§ 

6b(a)(2)(A) ond (C)). 
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On June 12, 2012, the Court Issued a Consent Order of Preliminary Injunction Against 

Defendants George Athonasatos, Laurence Dodge, and Madison lkan, Inc. 

U. CONSENTSANDAGREEMENTS 

To effb<rt sett]oment of this action without a trial on lht merits or further judicial 

proceedings, Defendont Laurene<> Dodge: 

I. Consents to the entry oflhis Consent Order of Permanent lnjunctioo, Civil 

Monetary Penolty, and Other Equitable Relief Against Oefendailt Laurence Dodge ("Cons""! 

Order"); 

2. Affirm• thet he has r<ad and agreed to this Conoent Order voluntarily, and that no 

promiso, other than .. specifically rontained herein, or threat, has been made by the Commission 

or any member, officer, agent or represehtotlve thereof, or by any other person, to induce consent 

to this Consoont Order; 

3. Acknowledges .. rvice upon him of the oummons and Complaint; 

4. Admits the juriadictlon of tho Court over !hem and the subject motter of this 

action pursuant to Se<:tion 6cofthc Act, 7 U.S.C. § 13a-l (2(}%); 

5. Admits the jurisdiction of the Commission over the conduct and transactions ot 

issue in this action pursuant to Section 5o <>fthe Act, 7 U.S.C. § !311-] (2006), and Section 

2(c)(2)(C) nfthe Act, 7 U.S.C. § 2(c)(2)(C) (Supp.U12009); 

6. Admitsthat venue properly lies with this Court pursuant to Sec~ ion &:(e) aft he 

Act, 7 U.S.C. § 13a-l (e) (2006); 

7. Waives; 

a. any and al! claims that be may ~"'"""' under the Equal Access to )U8tlce 

Ac~ 5 U. S.C. § 504 (2006) and 2.8 U.S. C. § 2412 (2006), ami/or the rules promulgated by the 

' 
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Comml .. ion In oonformlty therewitll, Part 148 of the R~gulatlons, 17 C.F.R. §§ 148.1, •t soq. 

(20 1 1 ), rolating to, or arising fillm till~ action; 

b. any ond all claims that he Jt\IIY posses.• under the Small BUBiness 

Regulatory Enfuroemont Fairnoss Act of 1996, Pub. L I 04--121, §§ 201 ·253, II 0 Stat 847, 857-

868(1996), as amended by Pub. L. No. !10·28, § 8302, 121 Stat. 112,204-205 (2007), relating 

to, or atising from Ill is proc=ling; 

c. any claim of Double Joopordy bast:d upon the institution of this aotlon or 

the entry in thlsactlon of My order imposing a civil monetary penalty or aoy other relief, 

Including this Consent Onier; ond 

d. any and all right:~ ofappeol from this IIClion; 

8. Cou-ts to the continued jurisdiction of this Court over tnm fur the pmposes of 

implementing and enforcing the terms and conditions ofthis Consent Order and for any other 

purpose relevant to this action, even If he now or in the future resides or operates out.slde the 

Jurisdle~ion of this em.-t; 

9. Agrees that he, will not oppose enforcement ofthis Consent Order on the grounds 

that it filils to comply with Rule 6S(d) of the Federal Rules ofClvlll'rocedur<> aod waives any 

objection based lh=xm; 

10. AgfC<'S that neither he nor any of his agent.o; or employeeo un~ his authority 

or control shall take any action or mqke any publiQ statement denying, directly or indirectly, ony 

alll:gatlon in the Complaint or the Findings of Foot or Conclusions of Law iu this Consent Order, 

or creating or tending to create the imp~to,..ion tho! the Complaint and/or tills Cont~¢nt Order is 

without a filcWal b•ais; provided, ho""'vct·, that nothing in this provision shall affect his: (a) 

testimonial obligations, or (b) right to toke legal positions in other proceedings to which the 

i 
.I 
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Commission is not a party, Dodge sh~ll unde.ttake all steps neeessory to ensure tho! his 

agents and/or employtes under his authority or control understand and comply with this 

agreement; 

1 L By consenting to the entry oflhi• Consent Order, neither llilmits nor denies the 

allegations of the Compln!nt 1$ the Findings of Fact or Conclusions of Law in thi.'l Consent 

Order, "'-cept as to jurlsdictioo and venue, which he admits. Further, Dodge asrees and intends 

tho! the o.llegotiOII.'l contained in the Complaint and all of tho Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 

Law contained in this Consent Order shall be taken as true •nd correct and be given preclusive 

effect, without further proof, in; (a) any current or subsequent bankroptcy proce<lding filed by, on 

behalf o( ~ again at him; (b) MY ~ing pursuant to Scctioo 8a of the Act, as QlYlended by 

the Dodd-Frank Wall Strut Ref011Il ond Consumer Protection Act of20 I 0 C'Dodd·Pl"llnk Act"), 

Pub, L. No. 111-203, Tide VII (the Wall Stn:ctTtnnsparerocy ond Accountability Act of2010), 

§§ 701 -774, 124 Stat. \316 (enacted July 21, 2010), to bo codified at 7 U.S.C. § 12a, and/m· Part 

3 of the Regulations, 17 C.F.R. §§ 3.1 el seq. (20 11); andfor (c) any proceeding to enforce the 

tenns of this Consent Order. 

12. Agrees to provid~ immediate notioo to this Court and the Commission by certified 

moil, in ~~~ manner r<>quin::d by Part Vi oftlli• Consent Order, of any bankrupt<:y proco•ding 

filed by, on beflalf of, or against dtber oftl1em whether inside or outside the United States; and 

t3. Agrees that no provision of this Consent Order shall in any way limit or impair 

the ability of any other person or entity to seek a11y logal or equillble rtmedy against him in aay 

other proceeding. 

' 
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lll. FINDINGS OF FACI" AND CONCLUSlONS OF LAW 

14. The Court, being fully advised in the premiseo, finds that th&nl is good cause for 

the entry oftbis Coment Order and ll"et thc>re is no ju.treason fur delay. The Comt tb=fore 

directs the entry of the following l'indings of Pact, Conclusions of Law, permanent injunction 

and equitable relief pursuant to Section 6c of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § l3a-1 (2006), and Section 

2(c)(2)(C) of the Act, 1 U.S.C. § 2(c)(2)(C) (Supp. U12009), as set furth herein. 

THE COURT :llERRBY FINOS: 

A. FINDINGS OF FACT 

]5. Plaintiff U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission is an independent 

federal regulatory agency that is charged by ~ with the administration and cnfo!"lX'ment 

oftbe Act, as amended by tbe Dodd-!'rank Act, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. §§ 1 et seq., and tbe 

Regulations ptomulgoted thereulldet, 17 C.F.R. §§ !.1 et seq. (201] ). 

16. Defendant Laursu:e D<idge is rm individual with a last known residence in Fresh 

Meadows, New York and is a oo-owner, officer, and a controlling person of Madison Dean. He 

has never be<>n regi'l!m'd with the Commissi011 in any capacity. 

2. Mbrepreoentatlo111 and Olttbslon• of Mal<\rlol F~to in Connect!OJI with the 
Sollcltatlon of Managed Forex Trading Accounbl 

18. !'rom approximately December 2008 through opproximately July 2010 (the 

"R*"'ant Period"), Madison Dean, through an internet website, written solicitation moterials, 

and the actiOIIS uftts officers ond employees, inclnding, but not limited to Dodge, solicited 

•pproximotely 19 persons to invest oppro><lmately $41 S,OOO in managed commodity trading 

accounts ~r the purpose oftrndlng foreign curfllncy ("fore><") contracts on oleveraged or 

margined basis. 

' 
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19, Alleast soou:, if not~~~~ of MadisOn Dean's C\IStOmers were not "eUgible contract 

participants" as tha!term is definod in S~ion la(12XA)(xi) oflhe Act, as amendod by the CRA, 

to be codified at 7 U.S.C. § la(I2)(A)(xi). An "eligible contract participant," a.s relevant here, is 

an individual wbo has total ass!':!• in an amount in excoss of (i) $1 0 million or (ii) $S million and 

who entm into tho transaction in order to manage risk. 

20. Madioon Dean was ..rtabli&lted in or about lleo;ember 2008, wbon Athanosato• 

purcllased a Wyoming-incorporated company called Blue Slcy Financial and changed its name to 

Madison Delm. Athanaoatos became President of Madison Dean and Dodge become Vice 

PrcsidenL Madisotl Dean initially operated out of an office in O.er Park, N,w York; in or about 

Decembe:l2009, it moved its office to a locatloo In Wantugh, Now York. 

2!. Athanasiltos and D<Mlge oversaw tho operations of Madison Dean, which 

consisted of approximately seven to ton employees, including appro,.tmatcly six salesmen. The 

mle of the salesmen was to speal< with membern oflhc public on the telephone to solicit their 

in1erest in opening commod~y trading accoonts. Th""" fM1Wi1S who ~=d such in.terest 

were sent an information package oontaining infurmation at>out Madison Dean, along with lbrms 

nece'"ary to open a coinmodity !rnding aooount At various times, Dodge spoke with potential 

customers in ordor to solicit them to open commodity trading accounts. 

21. On May 11, 2009, Madison Dean, entc~ into an "Introduclllg Broker 

~ment" and a "Service Agrtemont for Managed Acwunt SIOI'Vices" with Gain Capitol 

Group, LLC ("Go!n''), a registeted Futures Comml"'ion Merchant ("fCM"). Pursuant to tllese 

agreements, MadU;on Deon's cu•tomers opened trading ocoounts wru. forex.com, a division of 

Gain. Custotners then signed a Managed A=unt Authotir.ation!Limlted Power of Attorney 

form lll.llhorWng Modison o..an to pl.ll'cl»!se- ond oell furex contracts for tlleil' accounts. 

' 



Case 2:12-cv-02235-JFB-ARL   Document 36   Filed 06/20/13   Page 7 of 21 PageID #: 486

case 2:12-cv-02235-JF&ARL Document 35-1 Filed 05119113 Page 7 of 21 PageiD #' 465 

23. In soliciting these customers, Madison Deoln, through its Internet. web!lilt; written 

solicitation materlot., and the oral representations ofDodgc and oth=, mlsreprcsonted and 

omitted matcriol facts obout Madison Dean in an effort to cr~<~~~e a false impression !hal Madison 

Dean was a well-cslllblt..hed and •u=sful company. In addition, Madison Dean, by ond 

through written solicitutlon materials and !be oral representations of Dodge and othm, 

misrepresented and omitted material !8cts about the perfomulnce record ofMadiBon Dean. 

3. Ml•n>pre.oentationo and o .. lssloal Conoemlna: lbe History and Operation• 
ofMoldloon lleaa 

24. Madison Dean, by and through the actions of Dodge and others, went to grl'al 

leJI&Ihs to create the false impres!llon that it was a wett-e..mblisf>ed and successful company. 

Madison Dean maintained a website at www.mtJdlsor>-de<m.com. The website claimed that 

Madison Dean had been e.stobllshed in 1998, !t further claimed that the com~n)i serviced "high 

net worth individuals,~ "financial Institutions," and "inotltuli011al clients," and that it provided 

"professional money monagers" who would be In cllorge of the ~ trading fur the customers' 

managed accounts. The website's "Contact Us" page listed the company's address as 110 Wall 

Streot, Now York, New York and provided a Manhattan telephone number. 

25. Madison Dean provided written solicitation materials to persons who e~pressed 

on Werest in Madison Dean. 1"llese solicitation materials cltimed, among other thing.5, that 

"Madison Dean provides exceptional miUiaged accounts for clients around the world.~ 

26. Madison Deall ,..lesmen used prepared !ICripts In oollcitiog customers. The scripts 

instructed solesrnen to slllte, among other thing;, "As filr as my flnn ... w~ have a niche in the 

market that hos !>eon maklns a fortune for a select group of investors for years." 

27. Dodge misrepresented maierlal f!cts about Madisoo Deiiiiin solicitation calli 

with Potential customers. Dodge told a cu,tomer In a call in or about Docembcr 2009, thatthc 

' 
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people at Madi""" Dean wm all professionals and that the oompany traded for hodge funds and 

millionaires. 

28. Contrary to these claims, Modison Dean wa• only established in or about 

Dceember 2008, when Athanasatos pufcllased a previously EQI:isting company and changed its 

name to Madison Deen. Moreover, Madisoo Deen did not enter into the "Introducing Broker 

Agrc:emt111" and "Service Agreement for Managed Account Services" with Gain until Moy 2009. 

29. Madison Dean's customers were llC!ther high net worth lndividual'l, finMcilll 

institutional or other Institutional clients, hodge fund!, nor millionaires. Nor were MY of 

Madison Deon\1 custornor.l trom outside the United Stete.5. In filet, Mlldlson Dean ooly had 19 

customers tlroughout its ex lstenoe ll!ld tre lorgM amount invested by any 01\.!l cust<lniU was 

$75,000. 

30. Madison Dean did not hove professional money manogers in charge oflnldlng 

customer accounts. The pri11111ry pe!WI1 who managed the trading of customer aooounts was 

Athanasatos. On vatious oC<;aSlons, Dodge and Athat1sotoa's mother also traded on bebalf of 

customers, NollC of these individuals is a professional money mansger. 

3 L Co~ry to the Information on its website, Madison Dean's offices were in Deer 

Park, New YorkMd~ently Wantagh, New York, not Wall Street. The Wall Street 

address was a virtuol odd= rented by Madison Dean ..,.Jiich provided mail and mcs,gage 

forwarding services. ND Madison Dean employees ~ver worked out ofan offi., on Wall Street. 

1be Wall Street address was rented solely to create o false impression ofa successful company 

for potential customel'8, 

" 
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4. Mlsr~presentathma and OmiMi<llla Concerning Madlllon Dean's Porfunnance 
Record 

32. Madison Dean, by and througb !he actions of Podge and others, aloo routinely 

misrep..,sented Its performance record on the company'• weboite, In solicitation oalls with 

potential customers, and In the written solicitation materials .. nt to potential customers. 

33. Madison Dean's ~bs\te stated, "Madison Dean o»<rels Ill trading whereby we 

have beoome the Forex powe~·!ladlng team behind your every need." 

34. The prepared sales script used by Madison Dean salesmen instructed them to tell 

potential customrm thai the company "bas been making a fortune fur a •elect group ofinvestnrs 

forY""rs." 

35. In a solicitatioo call with on• potential customer Ill or about October 2009, Dodge 

implied to the ouS!Orller that Madison Dean's other customers were doing well in their accounts. 

In • so~citatlon call with another pOtential customer ln or obotil Dooember 2009, Dodge told the 

customer that Madison Dean had been making money for Its custome'rs for years and years. 

36. Wh"" potential customers ex~ interest In Madison Dean, they were 

routinely sent a standard IJiliniilltion package. At various tOnes, Dodge Wrectcd that thesl! 

information paci<llges he •ent to potential customers. Arnong the lnfunnation included in this 

package was a chart entitled "Madison Dclln Performanoe figures: Jan 08-Jul 09." This chart 

contal!!! ._graph which purports to show Madison Dean's "perfonnanC!l trading one standard lot 

per$10!1,000 of equity." The graph ~ows a steady ond continuous upward growth by which the 

$1 00,000 Invested in January 2008 had become $360,000 by July 2009. The chart also contains 

a column titled "Pcrfonnltllce In Pips" which purports to sbow gains in every month from 

J..umry 2008 through July 2009. 

' 
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39. Contrary to thes~ represwtations, Modison DeM hod not been making money for 

its customer• for years. Madison Dean did not oven exist prior to December 2008. It f!J'SI 

opened a ~al:eaCCOilnt with Gfiin ill April 2009, It entered illto an "Introducing Broker 

Agreentenf' and • "Service Agreement for Manqged Ar.<:onnt Services" with Oain In May 2009, 

•nd it did not Introduce any wstomer accounts to Gain until July 2009. Moreover, one~ it did 

.uort trading, under tho dlmc!lon of Adwwalos, Dodge, Md Athii!ISol<>ll'S mother, Madison 

D""n's trading resulted in overall net losses. All told, Madison Dean's customers lost 

approximately $249,845. After beillg in operotlon fur a little over one year, during which time it 

collected at least $111 ,744 In oommi.,ions and f""S. Madison Dean shlll down its operation with 

no notice to its customers and no way for those customers to contBCt the company or anyone 

....,ociated with it 

~ D<ldge Willi D Controil[ng Penon of Madison D""n 

40. During the Relevant P<f"lod Dodge was a corti!'Oillng person of Madison Dean. 

He wos a eo-owner and offiler of Madison Dean. He had authority b, and in fact did, hire 

employees, and at various times listened In on the solicitation calls of Madison DeM salesmen. 

He was oloo • signatory on the Madison Dean bonk accoutll and he signed agreements ond other 

do<:umcnts on belullfofMadison !)eon, including the~ts with Gain, corporate 

rowMions, ~. and account oponing document!l. 

B. CONCLUSIONSOFLAW 

L Jurilldlollon and Vt~~Qe 

41 , This Court hoa jurisdiction over thi& aotion pursuant to Section 6c of the Act, 

7 V.S.C. § na-1 (2006), which provides that whonever It shall appeal" to tho Commission that 

any person has engaged, Is engaging, or is about to engage in ony act or practlce constituting a 
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~iolatlon of any provision of the Act or 111\Y rule, regulBt1011, or order promulgated thereunder, the 

Commission may bl1ng an action in the proper district oourt: of the United States against such 

person to onjoin .mcl1 act or practice. or to enforce eompliance with the Act, or any rule, 

regulation or order thereunder. 

42. The Commission has jurisdiction ovartile forex so!icitatiOJI.'i and b:ansoctions at 

Issue in this action pursuant to &lotions 6c and 2(c)(2)(C) ofth~ Act, 1 U.S.C. § 13a-1, 

2(c)(2)(C) (2006 and Supp. 1112009). 

43. Venue prope!•ly lles With this Court pursuant to Sectioa 6c(e) of the Act, 1 U.S. C. 

§ 13a-l (e)(2006), be<:auoo during the Relevant Period Dof!!ndont Dodge resided ondlor operated 

in this jurisdiction and the aots and practices In violation of the Act <><:<:um:d wlthln this District. 

l. Vlo\ltloP of Sec !Ions 4b(a)(2)(A) and (C)ofthe ¥~ 1111 AmeBded by tbe 
CRA: Frand in Conaeo:lion with Fanx Transacllons 

44. By the oonduot described In pa.ragn~phs 1 H through 40 above, Dodge cheatod ond 

defranded, or llltMlpte<l to cheat ond defraud, ond wtllfully deceived, or attempted 10 deceive, 

Madison Dean's customers by, among other things, knowingly or reoklossly: a) misrepresenting 

moterla! fioct:'l about Madison Deon fur rhe purpose of creating a falso impre:;oion that Madison 

Dean """' a well...,stab!i.shed ond successf\ll eompany; and b) misrepresenting material filers 

abo~! the parformonce reeord of Madison Dean in violation of Scctlona 4b(a)(2)(A) and (C) of 

!he Act"' amended by the CRA, to be codified at 1 U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(A)and (C). 

45. Dodge oontrolled Madison Dean, directly or indiroctly, ond did not act in good 

mith or knowingly Induced, directly or indirectly, Madison Dean's act or acts in violation cfthe 

Act, os om ended; th....,fure, pursuant to Section 13(b) of the Act, a• amended, 7 U.S.C. § 13c(b), 

" 
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Dodge is Jioble for Madison Dean's violations of Sections 4b(aX2)(A) oru! (C) oftfl~ Act a3 

amend~ by !heCRA, In be codified at 7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(a}(2)(A) and (C). 

46. The furegolng IIC!S, omissions, and failures of Dodge occurred within the scope nf 

h!.o employnu:n~ office, or agoocy with Madison Dean; therefore, pursuant In Section 2(a)(l)(B) 

oft be Aol, osamendod, 1 U.S. C.§ 2(aXl)(B), and Regulation !.2, 17 C.F.R. § !.2 (2011), 

M&dlson Dean is liabl~ fur Dodge's acts, omissions, and failures in violation of 4b(a)(2XAJ and 

(C)oftbeAct as amended by the CRA, to bo codifi~ at 7 ll.S.C. §§ 6b(aX2J(A) and(C). 

47. Unless restrained and enjoined by this Cow1, there is a l'I'IISOIIOb[e likdihood tho!' 

Dodge wilt continue to engage in the octs and practices alleged in the Complaint and in similar 

&ciS ond practi<:e, in violation nfthe Act. 

IV. PERMANENT INJUNCTION 

IT IS HERElJYOl.IDERE'D THAT: 

48. Based upon and in COIIIIection with !he fnregoing conduc~ pu,.,.uant to Section 6c 

of the Ac~ ae amended, 1 U.S.C. § 13o-1, Dodge is pennanently restrained, er\ioined and 

prohibited from directly or iodlrectly cheating or defrauding, or attempting to cheat or defraud, 

other persons in or in connection with ony order to make, or the making of, any conlntct of sale 

ohny commodity fi>r future delivery tltal Is made, or to bema de, i>ror on bolholfo~ or with, 

any other pelliOI1 in violation of Sections 4b(a)(2)(A) and (C) ofth~ Act as amended by the CRA, 

to b~ codified at 7 U.S. C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(A) and (C). 

49. Dodge is also permanently reslralnod, ~nJoln~ and pmlliblted from directly nr 

indirectly: 

o, Ttading on or SQbje« to the rules of any l'l'glstered entity (as tllat term Is 

defined in Section Ia oftheA.ol,"" amended, 7 U.S.C. § Ia}; 
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b. Enterlng into any transactions involving oommodity futures, options on 

commodity futures, commodity options (u thatterm Is defoned in Regulation 1.3 (hh), 17 C.f'.R. 

§ 1.3(hh) (2011)) C'oommodlty options"), swaps (as that term is defined in Section la(47) of the 

Ae~ 7 U.S.C. § lo(47) (Supp. V20!1), and as further defined by Regulation 1.3(xxx), 17 C.P.R. 

§ 1.3(xx~) (20 12) C'swaps''), security futures products, and/or foreign cummcy (as desoribed in 

Sections 2(c)(2)(B) and 2(e)(2)(C)(i) of the Act, as amended, 7 U.S.C. §§ 2(c)(2)(B) and 

2(c)(2)(C)(i)) (''forex oootri!Cts'') for his own personalacoonnt or for any account in Which ho 

has a direct or indirect lnt....,st; 

c. Having any commodity _futures, options on commodity futures, 

oommo-dity options, swap~, security futures products, and/or forex contracts traded on his behalf, 

d. Controlling or dl~ing the trading for or on behalf of any other penon or 

entity, \Oil.elber by pow.;r of attorney or otherwise, in any account involving commodity futures, 

options on commodity futures, commodity optlons, swaps, security futures products, and/or 

forex contracts; 

e. Sol lei~, receiving or a<:ceptlng any lmds from any person Jbr the 

purpose ofpurdtMing or selling any commOOity futures, opli0118 on ~ommodity futures, 

commodity option.s, swaps, security futures products, and/or forex contracts; 

f. Applylng for registmioo. or claiming eKelllption from registl"atlon with the 

Commission in any oapaoity, and engaging in any ..tlvity requiring such rogi.strotion oo· 

exemption fiom regi•tmtlon with the Commission, e~cept as provided fur in Regulation 

4. !4(a)(9), 17 C.F .R. § 4.l4(a)(9) (20 11 ); and/ot 

g. Acting as a principal (as that temt is defined in Regulation 3.1(a), 17 

C.F.R. § 3.1 (a) (201 I)), agent or ony other officer or employee of any person (as tltot tenn Is 
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defined in Section to of tho Act, as amended, 1 U.S.C. § Ia) registered, exempttd 11om 

registm~on or required to be regiotered with the Commission except as provided fur in 

Regulation 4.14(a)(9), 17 C.F.R. § 4.14(a)(9) (2011). 

V. RESTITU1'ION AND CIVIL MONETARY PENALTY 

A. lleslitutlon 

50. Dod~ •hall pay restilutkm in the amount of$249,845 ("Restitution Obligation''), 

plus post-judgment Interest, jointly and scvenlly with Defendants Athanosatos and Madison 

~n. The Restitution Obligation shall b-e paid within thirty (30) days of the date ofthe entry of 

this Consent Order. If the Restitution Obligation is not paid in full within thirty (30) days of the 

date of entry of this Consent Order, then po.ot-judgmwt interest shall accrue on the Restitution 

Obligation beginning on the date of ""''Y of this Consent Order and shall be determined by using 

the Treasury Bill ralo prevailing on the date of entry of this Co!lsl)llt Order pursuont to 28 U.S.C. 

§ 1961 (2006). 

51. To effect payment of the Restitution Obligation and the distribution of any 

restitution payments to MadiJ;on Doan's customers, the Court appoints the Nlllloolll Putures 

ASll"'-'iation ('NP A'') os Monitor ('Monitor'~. 'llte Monitor shllll collect <Wlitution paym~nts 

ftnm Dodge lllld make distributions ss set forth below, Bce&use the Monitor is acting as an 

officer of this Court in f"'rformins these servioes, the NPA shall not be liable fur any action or 

inaction orislng from NFA 's appointment as Monitor, other than actions involving li'aud. 

52. Dodge shall make Res~Mion Obli8otlon ~ymonts under this Consont Order to 

the Monitor in the name "Madison Dean Res!itutlo~ Fund" ·~4 shall •end such Restitution 

ObUgotion payments by elcctron!o f\mds tr!IIISfer, or by U.S. postal money order, certllied check, 

-bank ca..hier'•, or bank money order, to the Offi~ of Administration, National FUture• 

" 
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Ass~tion, 300 South Riverside Plaza, Suite 1800, Chicago, Illinois 60606 under cover letter 

that identifies the pa)!lng detend!mt and the name and dookel number of this proceeding, Dodge 

sba!l simulhlneons!y transmit copies of the cover letter and the form of payment to tlw Chief 

Pinonciai Officer, Commodity Putures Tmding Commission, Three Lafayette Centre, 11 SS 21st 

Stteet, NW, Washington, D.C. 20581. 

53. The Monitor shall oversee tho R .. titution Obligation and sball have the discretion 

to determine tbe monnor or dislribulion of guch fund~ in an equilllble fashion to the defrauded 

customers idcnt!fiW by tbe Commission or may defer distribution until sucb time as the Monitor 

deems lqlpropriate. In the event !hot tho llllOIInt ofRestltntion Obiig~~tion payments to the 

Monitor arc ofa de minimis nature such that the Monitor determines tO.ttl"e admin lstro~·ve cost 

of11111king a distribution to eligible customers is impractical, the Monitor may, in its disaeti011, 

treat such rcs!IMion payments as civil monotary pMalty payments, wllich the Monitor shall 

forward to the Commission following the instructioos for civil monetury penalty payments silt 

forth herein. 

$4. Dodge shall cooperate with tho Monitor as appropriate to provide such 

infurrnation as the Monitor deems neoeo .. ry and appropriate to identify those costomer:s to 

whom the Monitor, in its sole discretion, mfl.y determine to lllclude in any plBII for di.stribution of 

any R<>stitution Obl!gatlon payments, Dodge sholl oxecute any documents r><'<:essary to release 

fw,ds that h~ bas In any repository, bank, lnveslm<lll! or otbar flnanclallnstitution, wherever 

located, in ordor to make partial or total pa}ment tOWIITd the Restitution Obligation. 

55. The Monitor olutU provide the Commission at the beginning of each Cll.lendar year 

with a ,..,port detailing the dhbur:stllllenl of funds to deftauded customers during th$ p,..,vious 

year. The Monitor shall transmjl this report under a cover letter that identifies tl>e name Md 

" 
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docket number of this proceeding to the Chief Finanoisl Officer, Commodity Futures Trading 

Commission, Three Lafayette Cen~, 11 SS 21st Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20581 . 

56. l1>e amounts payable to aacll cU!ltomer shall not limit the ability of any customer 

from proving that a greoter amount is owed from Dodge or any other person or entity, and 

nothing herein shall be constroed in any way to limit or abridge the rights of lillY customor that 

exist under stole or common law. 

57. Pursuant to Rule 71 ofd1o Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, each customer 

Madison Dean who suffered a loss !~expllcidy made an intended third-party beneficiary of this 

Consent Order and may seek to enforce obedience ofthis ConSCilt Order to obtain s.Jtisfsction of 

any pordon of the restitution that bas not been paid by Dodge to onsure continued complillllce 

with any provision of this Consent Order and to hold Dodge in contempt for any violations of 

any provision of this Consclll Order. 

58. To the extent that any fund.! =rue to the U.S. Treasury for satisfaction of 

Dodge's Rostitution Obligation, such fund.! shall be transferred to tho Monitor for disbursement 

in accordance with tho procedures set furth above. 

59. To the exten! this Court orders My other defendant in this action to pay 

re•titution, Dodge's Restitution Obligation will be deemed satisfied, on a dollar-for-dollar basis 

by such other dofcndant's payment!; in satlsfaotion of his restitution obligation pursuant to such 

o!her on:ler of this Court. 

B. Civil MoPe'-t'l' P011alty 

60. Dodge shall JlllY a civil monetlll")' penalty in the amount of $1 50,000 {''CMP 

Obligation"), plus polit-judgment interest, within thirty (30) day• of the date of the entry of this 

Consent Order. !fthe CMP Obligation Is not paid in full within lhirty (30) days of tho date of 

16 
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entry of this Consent Ordcr, tlton post-judgment interest shall accrue on the CMP Obligation 

beginnhg on thB date of entry of this Con..,nt Order and s!JIU bo determined by u.slng the 

Treasury am mil: prevailing on the date of entry oftbis Con&ent Ol'<ler plli'SU!nt to 28 U.S.C. § 

1%1 (1006}. 

61. Dodge shall pay his CMP Obligation by electronic funds 11"8Ilsfer, U.S. postal 

money ardor, certified check, bank cashier's check, or bank money order. If payment is to be 

made other than by eleotronlc funds tnosfer, then lbe payment shall be made payable to the 

Commodit)' futures Trading ComntJsslon and sent to the address below: 

Commodity F\ltures Trading Commission 
Division ofEnforcement 
A TIN: Acoount. Receivables- AMZ 340 
E-mail B= 9-AMC.AMZ·AR·CFTC 
DOTIFAAIMMAC 
6500S. MacArthur Blvd. 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 
Telephone: (405) 9S4-S644 

If payment by electronic funds transfer is chosen., Dodge shall contact Linda Zurharst or her 

suooes$01" at the address above to receive payment instrootions and shall fully oomply with tho.se 

instructions. Dodge shall acoompany payment of tile CMP Ob~galion with a cover lo:tter that 

identifies him and the name and docket number of this proceeding. Dodge slto.ll simultanoou.lly 

transm~ copies of the oover letter and the form of payment to the Cbi..t'Financlal Officer, 

Commodity Futures Trading Commission, '!'hJee Lafayette Centre, 1155 21st Street, NW, 

Washington, D.C. 20581. 

C. l'rovlsiollll Related to Monetary SancHono 

62. l'artiol Satisfaction: Any acceptanc~ by the Commission or the Monitor Mpartiol 

payment of D::>dge's Restitution Obligation or CMP Obligotlon shall not be deemed a Wlllver of 

I 
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his obligation to make further p~yments pursuant to this Consent Order, or a waiver of the 

Commission's right to seek to oompel payment of any remaining balance. 

D. Cooperation 

63. Dodge shall cooporate fully and oxpeditiously with the Commls.sl011, iMludlng 

the Comml .. ion's O!vision ofBnfurcement, and any other governmental agency in this action, 

and in any investigation, civillitiga!lon, or odministrative matter 1'8Ja!ed to tflc su~eet matter of 

this acd011 or any current or future Commission lnvestfgaUon >"elated thereto, As part of such 

oooperatiol\ Dodge agrees to: 

a, Comply fully, promptly, and truthfully with all inquiries ond 

~uest• for information or documents; 

Provide authentication of documents and other evidentiacy 

material; and 

TestifY fully and truthfully In any proceeding, as requeSted by the 

Conunlssion. 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

64. Notice: All notices required to be given by any provision in this Consent Order 

•ho.U be sent certified mail, return receipt~. as follOWS' 

Notice to Commission: 

Attention • Director ofllnforoement 
Commodity Futures Trading Commission 
Divlsion otEnforoeme:nt 
Three l.afaymte Center 1155 21st Street, N. W. 
Woshingl<m, DC 20S8t 

All •uch notices to the Commission shall reference the nom~ and dock~t number of this oction. 

No~oo to the Monitor: 

" 
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Vi~ President, Compliance 
N!l!lcool Fut\lre!l ~tion 
200 West Madison StreetChicago,IL 60606 

65. Ch!lllge of Addrcss/l'hone: Until suGh time as Podge satisfies in full his 

Restitution Obligation and CMP Obligation as set forth in this Consent Order, he shall provide 

written notice to the Commission by certified mail of any change to his telephone number and 

mailing add""'s wU:hln ten {10) cal~ar days oftl>e chqe. 

66. Entire Agreement and Ame11dments: This Conoent Order incorporates all of the 

wms and conditions of the settlemMI among the parties hereto to date. Nothing shoJI serve to 

amend or modify this Consont Order in any respect Whatsoever, unless: (a) reduced to writing; 

(b) signed by aU parties hereto; and (e) approved by order of this Court. 

67. lnvaUdatlon: Jfany prevision ofthis Co)l!lcnt Ol)lor or the "application of any 

provision or circumstance is held invalid, then the remainder of this Consenl Order and the 

oppliclllion of the provision to any other person ot circumstance shall not be affected by the 

holding. 

68. Waiver: The fatlure ofany party to this Constmt Order or of any customer at any 

time to require performance ofany provision of this Consent Order shall in no monnef affect the 

right of the party or customer at a later time to enforce the same or any other provision of this 

Consent Ol'ier. No waiver in one or more Instances of the breach ofany provision contained in 

this Consent Order shall be deemad to be or consii'Uod as a further or continuing waiver of Sllch 

breach or waiver of the breacll ofony other provision ofthio Con9CJit Order. 

69. Continuing Jurisdiction of this Court: This Court shall r<ltain jurlsd!otion ofthis 

action to ensure complianc<: with this Con,ent Order and fur oil other pm-poses re!at<:d to this 

" 
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action, including any motion by Dod !I" to modify or for relief ftorn the terms of this Consent 

""" 
70, l!\lunctivc Md Equitable Relief Provisions: The 11\iuncllve and equitable rolief 

provisions ofthis Consent Order shall be binding upon Dodge, upon any pe=n under his 

authority or control, Md upon any peroon who receives actual notice of this Consent Order, by 

pers<Jnal Sl'rvice, e-mail, facsimile or otherwise in110far es ho or she is aetlng in active eoncert or 

participation with Dodge. 

71 . Counte~parts and Facsimile Execution: This COOsent Order may be eJ<ecuted in 

two or rn<m countel]>arts, all of which shall be eonsidered one and the same agreement ond shall 

booomc effective when one or mo~ counterparts have been signed by each of the parties hereto 

and delivered {by fucslmlle, c-mal~ or otherwise) to the othor l"'rlJ', it being understood that all 

pllrties need not sign tll<o sft!lle counterpart. Any counterpart or other signature to !his Consent 

Order that is deUvered by any means shall be <kemod for all Plll'JlO.'"' as constituting gnOO and 

valid =u~on and delivery by silch part)' of this Consent Order. 

12. Dodge understands that the term• of the Consent Order •~ ooforceablc th1'0Ugb 

contempt proceedings, nnd that, in any such proceedings he may not challenge the validity of this 

Consent Order. 

There being no just reason for delay, tho Clerk ofthe Court is hereby dlreeted to ent<r 

!hi• Conu~t Or-der for Civil Monetary Penalty, <md Offlor Equitable Relief Against Laurw1ce 

JOSEPn, BIM(CO .-
UNITE TATES DISl'RIC'I" JUDGE 
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OONSENTED TO AND APPROVED BY: 

Delhldant: 

Lourenco Dndge 

A~:iil%~« 
David H. Oend.Qimon I 
49 West 37"' Street; 9"' Floor 
New York, New York 10018 
Attorney for [lefimdont Laurence Dodge 

o.., ---'-L~~:_;c~_:_? -

Plaintiff 

AlonEd~man aaz 
Commodity Futures Trading Commission 
1155 21" Street, N.W, 
Washington, D.C. 20581 
202-418-5000 
202-418-$87 {fueslmlle) 
aede!mo!>@cftc.gov 


